

HOUSE JOURNAL

EIGHTY-SEVENTH LEGISLATURE, REGULAR SESSION

PROCEEDINGS

NINETEENTH DAY — TUESDAY, APRIL 6, 2021

The house met at 2:02 p.m. and was called to order by the speaker.

The roll of the house was called and a quorum was announced present (Record 85).

Present — Mr. Speaker(C); Allen; Allison; Anchia; Anderson; Ashby; Bailes; Beckley; Bell, C.; Bell, K.; Bernal; Biedermann; Bonnen; Bowers; Bucy; Burns; Burrows; Button; Cain; Campos; Canales; Capriglione; Cason; Clardy; Cole; Coleman; Collier; Cook; Cortez; Craddick; Crockett; Cyrier; Darby; Davis; Dean; Deshotel; Dominguez; Dutton; Ellzey; Fierro; Frank; Frullo; Gates; Geren; Gervin-Hawkins; Goldman; González, J.; González, M.; Goodwin; Guerra; Guillen; Harless; Harris; Hefner; Hernandez; Herrero; Hinojosa; Holland; Howard; Huberty; Hull; Hunter; Israel; Jetton; Johnson, A.; Johnson, J.D.; Johnson, J.E.; Kacal; King, K.; King, P.; King, T.; Klick; Krause; Kuempel; Lambert; Landgraf; Larson; Leach; Leman; Longoria; Lopez; Lozano; Lucio; Martinez; Martinez Fischer; Metcalf; Meyer; Meza; Middleton; Minjarez; Moody; Morales, C.; Morales, E.; Morales Shaw; Morrison; Muñoz; Murphy; Murr; Neave; Noble; Oliverson; Ordaz Perez; Ortega; Pacheco; Paddie; Parker; Patterson; Paul; Perez; Price; Ramos; Raney; Raymond; Reynolds; Rodriguez; Rogers; Romero; Rose; Rosenthal; Sanford; Schaefer; Schofield; Shaheen; Sherman; Shine; Slaton; Slawson; Smith; Smithee; Spiller; Stephenson; Stucky; Swanson; Talarico; Thierry; Thompson, E.; Thompson, S.; Tinderholt; Toth; Turner, C.; Turner, J.; VanDeaver; Vasut; Vo; Walle; White; Wilson; Wu; Zwiener.

Absent, Excused — Buckley.

The invocation was offered by Representative Cason as follows:

Our gracious, heavenly Father, we come to you today with hearts of thanksgiving. Lord, we just pray that as we continue our week and our session, that you would be with us, that you would guide us, Lord, that you would bear witness against our hearts. I just pray that we would bring honor and glory to your name. Lord, we're an imperfect people, but we're made perfect through the blood of Jesus Christ in your eyes. And I just pray, Lord, that you would forgive us of our sins and our trespasses against you and against one another.

So Lord, as we continue on in our session, guide us, walk with us, guide our thoughts, our actions, our deeds. I pray that we would treat each other with kindness and work together, Lord, to meet the needs of the people of this great

State of Texas. We're honored to be in this chamber and to serve these people. And I just pray, Lord, that you would walk with us, guide us, and give us your wisdom. In Jesus' name we pray. Amen.

The chair recognized Representative Campos who led the house in the pledges of allegiance to the United States and Texas flags.

FIVE-DAY POSTING RULE SUSPENDED

Representative White moved to suspend the five-day posting rule to allow the Committee on Homeland Security and Public Safety to consider **HB 831** at 10:30 a.m. or upon final adjournment or recess or bill referral, if permission is granted, Thursday, April 8 in E2.030.

The motion prevailed.

PROVIDING FOR A CONGRATULATORY AND MEMORIAL CALENDAR

Representative Guillen moved to set a congratulatory and memorial calendar for 9 a.m. Friday, April 9.

The motion prevailed.

MESSAGE FROM THE SENATE

A message from the senate was received at this time (see the addendum to the daily journal, Messages from the Senate, Message No. 1).

FIVE-DAY POSTING RULE SUSPENDED

Representative Anchia moved to suspend the five-day posting rule to allow the Committee on Pensions, Investments, and Financial Services to consider **HB 4205** at 8 a.m. tomorrow in E2.030.

The motion prevailed.

PROVIDING FOR A LOCAL, CONSENT, AND RESOLUTIONS CALENDAR

Representative Geren moved to set a local, consent, and resolutions calendar for 9 a.m. Friday, April 9.

The motion prevailed.

LEAVE OF ABSENCE GRANTED

The following member was granted leave of absence for today because of important business in the district:

Buckley on motion of Harris.

GENERAL STATE CALENDAR HOUSE BILLS SECOND READING

The following bills were laid before the house and read second time:

CSHB 103 ON SECOND READING
(by Landgraf, Meyer, Guillen, Kuempel, et al.)

CSHB 103, A bill to be entitled An Act relating to establishment of the Texas Active Shooter Alert System.

CSHB 103 - REMARKS

REPRESENTATIVE LANDGRAF: I appreciate the opportunity to lay out **CSHB 103**, the Leilah Hernandez Act. Over the Labor Day weekend in 2019, a mobile gunman killed seven people and injured 25 across the Odessa and Midland communities. In the hours and the months in the aftermath of that shooting, suggestions came in from constituents and friends all across the state about what can be done immediately to help prevent massive losses of life like we saw throughout that month of August 2019. And the culmination of those suggestions is what you have here on this floor today.

The goal of **CSHB 103** is to save lives and assist first responders through the creation of a statewide active shooter alert system. The alert system will utilize the federal wireless emergency alert system, which is the same system that's used for Amber Alerts, to inform Texans in the event of an active mass shooter in their area. An alert system of this kind could have helped spare the life of Leilah Hernandez, a 15-year-old Odessa High School student who was the youngest victim killed on that tragic day. Leilah's family and other victims' families are passionately advocating for this alert system. Leilah's mother, Joanna, provided powerful testimony for **CSHB 103** in committee, and she's watching right now from her home in Odessa.

It's our hope and our prayer that **CSHB 103** will prevent future Texas families from experiencing the pain and the loss that they are feeling and that far too many Texas families are feeling and have felt in recent years. And I sincerely hope that the passage of this legislation helps you and your family to take one more step on your healing journey, although I know nothing can ever replace the loved ones whom you've lost.

Amendment No. 1

Representative Landgraf offered the following amendment to **CSHB 103**:

Amend **CSHB 103** (house committee printing) as follows:

(1) On page 2, line 14, between "agency" and "regarding", insert "or as the department determines appropriate to assist a local law enforcement agency".

(2) On page 2, lines 15-16, strike "in a 50-mile radius of the active shooter's location".

(3) On page 2, line 17, between "agency" and the underlined colon, insert "or department".

(4) On page 2, line 24, strike "the department with".

(5) On page 4, line 10, between "director" and "determines", insert "or a local law enforcement agency".

(6) On page 4, between lines 12 and 13, insert the following:

Sec. 411.380. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. The department or a local law enforcement agency is not liable for failure to activate the alert system.

LANDGRAF: Members, this amendment simply removes the 50-mile radius requirement, based on feedback that I received from members of the House Committee on Homeland Security and public discretion and flexibility to tailor an active shooter alert in the best interests of the public.

Amendment No. 1 was adopted.

LANDGRAF: I do want to thank everybody who's been involved with this. I want to particularly thank Chairman Drew Darby. Your work in the interim on the Select Committee on Mass Violence Prevention and Community Safety helped foster this discussion, and I want to appreciate all of your leadership at all those committee hearings.

And it's in Leilah's memory that we move forward with **CSHB 103** and in the memory of all of those who have been lost to acts of mass violence in recent years throughout our state. So today I ask you to join me in voting for **CSHB 103** to honor the memory of every Texan who has lost their life to mass violence. I'll be voting yes in memory of Leilah Hernandez, of Rudy Arco, of Kameron Brown, Raul Garcia, Mary Granados, Joe Griffith, and Edwin Peregrino.

REMARKS ORDERED PRINTED

Representative Moody moved to print all remarks on **CSHB 103**.

The motion prevailed.

CSHB 103, as amended, was passed to engrossment.

HB 1658 ON SECOND READING (by Murphy)

HB 1658, A bill to be entitled An Act relating to the methods by which the comptroller may provide notice of a deficiency determination or jeopardy determination.

HB 1658 was passed to engrossment.

HB 914 ON SECOND READING (by Hernandez)

HB 914, A bill to be entitled An Act relating to the authority of certain municipal employees to request the removal and storage of certain abandoned or illegally parked or operated vehicles.

Amendment No. 1

Representative Hernandez offered the following amendment to **HB 914**:

Amend **HB 914** (house committee printing) by striking SECTION 1 of the bill (page 1, lines 6-20) and renumbering subsequent SECTIONS of the bill accordingly.

Amendment No. 1 was adopted.

HB 914, as amended, was passed to engrossment. (Toth recorded voting no.)

HB 2677 ON SECOND READING
(by Bonnen)

HB 2677, A bill to be entitled An Act relating to the name of the statewide alert system for certain missing adults.

HB 2677 was passed to engrossment.

HB 2073 ON SECOND READING
(by Burrows, Goldman, Longoria, Meyer, Sherman, et al.)

HB 2073, A bill to be entitled An Act relating to quarantine leave for fire fighters, peace officers, and emergency medical technicians employed by, appointed by, or elected for a political subdivision.

HB 2073 was passed to engrossment.

HB 2462 ON SECOND READING
(by Neave, Button, Collier, M. González, Meyer, et al.)

HB 2462, A bill to be entitled An Act relating to a forensic medical examination occurring with respect to a sexual assault reported to a law enforcement agency.

Amendment No. 1

Representative Neave offered the following amendment to **HB 2462**:

Amend **HB 2462** (house committee report) as follows:

(1) Strike page 1, line 18, through page 2, line 15, and substitute the following:

(b) If a sexual assault is not reported within the period described by Subsection (a) and the victim is a minor as defined by Section 101.003, Family Code, on receiving the consent described by Subsection (a) or the consent described by Section 32.003 or 32.005, Family Code, a law enforcement agency shall request a forensic medical examination of the victim for use in the investigation or prosecution of the offense ~~[A law enforcement agency may decline to request a forensic medical examination under Subsection (a) only if:~~

~~[(1) the person reporting the sexual assault has made one or more false reports of sexual assault to any law enforcement agency; and~~

~~[(2) there is no other evidence to corroborate the current allegations of sexual assault].~~

(c) If a sexual assault is not reported within the period described by Subsection (a) and the victim is not a minor as defined by Section 101.003, Family Code, on receiving the consent described by Subsection (a), ~~[that subsection]~~ a law enforcement agency may request a forensic medical examination of a victim of a reported ~~[an alleged]~~ sexual assault for use in the investigation or prosecution of the offense if:

(1) based on the circumstances of the reported assault, the agency believes a forensic medical examination would further that investigation or prosecution; or

(2) after a medical evaluation by a physician, sexual assault examiner, or sexual assault nurse examiner, the physician or examiner notifies the agency that a forensic medical examination should be conducted [as considered appropriate by the agency].

(d) If a sexual assault is reported to a law enforcement agency as provided by Subsection (a), (b), or (c), the law enforcement

(2) Add the following appropriately numbered SECTIONS to the bill and renumber subsequent SECTIONS of the bill accordingly:

SECTION ____. Subchapter F, Chapter 56A, Code of Criminal Procedure, is amended by adding Article 56A.2506 to read as follows:

Art. 56A.2506. DEFINITION. In this subchapter, "reported sexual assault" means a sexual assault that has been reported to a law enforcement agency.

SECTION ____. Article 56A.303, Code of Criminal Procedure, is amended to conform to Section 4, Chapter 1037 (**HB 616**), Acts of the 86th Legislature, Regular Session, 2019, and is further amended to read as follows:

Art. 56A.303. FORENSIC MEDICAL EXAMINATION. (a) In accordance with Subchapter B, Chapter 420, Government Code, and except as provided by Subsection (b), a health care facility shall conduct a forensic medical examination of a victim of a ~~[an alleged]~~ sexual assault if:

(1) the victim arrives at the facility within 120 [96] hours after the assault occurred;

(2) the victim consents to the examination; and

(3) at the time of the examination the victim has not reported the assault to a law enforcement agency.

(b) If a health care facility does not provide diagnosis or treatment services to victims of sexual assault, the facility shall refer a victim of a ~~[an alleged]~~ sexual assault who seeks a forensic medical examination under Subsection (a) to a health care facility that provides services to those victims.

(c) A victim of a ~~[an alleged]~~ sexual assault may not be required to participate in the investigation or prosecution of an offense as a condition of receiving a forensic medical examination under this article.

SECTION ____. Article 56A.304, Code of Criminal Procedure, is amended to conform to Sections 4 and 8, Chapter 1037 (**HB 616**), Acts of the 86th Legislature, Regular Session, 2019, and is further amended to read as follows:

Art. 56A.304. PAYMENT OF FEES RELATED TO EXAMINATION. (a) On application to the ~~[The department shall pay the appropriate fees, as set by] attorney general [rule], a health care facility that provides [for the forensic portion of] a forensic medical examination to a sexual assault survivor in accordance with this subchapter, or the [conducted under Article 56A.303(a) and for the evidence collection kit if a physician,] sexual assault examiner [r] or sexual assault nurse examiner who conducts that [the forensic portion of the] examination, as applicable, within 120 [96] hours after the [alleged] sexual assault occurred is entitled to be reimbursed in an amount set by attorney general rule for:~~

(1) the reasonable costs of the forensic portion of that examination; and

(2) the evidence collection kit.

(b) The application under Subsection (a) must be in the form and manner prescribed by the attorney general and must include:

(1) certification that the examination was conducted in accordance with the requirements of Article 56A.303(a); and

(2) a complete and itemized bill of the reasonable costs of the forensic portion of the examination [~~attorney general shall reimburse the department for fees paid under Subsection (a)].~~

(c) A health care facility or a sexual assault examiner or sexual assault nurse examiner, as applicable, who applies for reimbursement under Subsection (a) shall accept reimbursement from the attorney general as payment for the costs unless:

(1) the health care facility or sexual assault examiner or sexual assault nurse examiner, as applicable:

(A) requests, in writing, additional reimbursement from the attorney general; and

(B) provides documentation in support of the additional reimbursement, as reasonably requested by the attorney general; and

(2) the attorney general determines that there is a reasonable justification for additional reimbursement.

(d) A health care facility is not entitled to reimbursement under this article unless the forensic medical examination was conducted at the facility by a physician, sexual assault examiner, or sexual assault nurse examiner.

(e) On request, the attorney general may provide training to a health care facility regarding the process for applying for reimbursement under this article.

(f) A victim of a ~~an alleged~~ sexual assault may not be required to pay for:

(1) the forensic portion of the forensic medical examination; or

(2) the evidence collection kit.

SECTION ____. Article 56A.307, Code of Criminal Procedure, is amended to read as follows:

Art. 56A.307. PROCEDURES FOR SUBMISSION OR COLLECTION OF ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE. The department, consistent with Chapter 420, Government Code, may develop procedures regarding the submission or collection of additional evidence of a ~~an alleged~~ sexual assault other than through a forensic medical examination as described by Article 56A.303(a).

Amendment No. 1 was adopted.

HB 2462, as amended, was passed to engrossment.

CSHB 1445 ON SECOND READING
(by Oliverson, Meyer, and Allison)

CSHB 1445, A bill to be entitled An Act relating to the applicability of the sales and use tax to medical or dental billing services.

CSHB 1445 was passed to engrossment.

HB 1755 ON SECOND READING**(by Metcalf)**

HB 1755, A bill to be entitled An Act relating to the removal of an alcoholic beverage by an ultimate consumer from the premises of a mixed beverage permit holder.

Amendment No. 1

Representative Goldman offered the following amendment to **HB 1755**:

Amend **HB 1755** (house committee printing) by adding the following appropriately numbered SECTIONS to the bill and renumbering subsequent SECTIONS of the bill accordingly:

SECTION _____. Section 28.01(c), Alcoholic Beverage Code, as effective September 1, 2021, is amended to read as follows:

(c) The holder of a mixed beverage permit may also:

(1) purchase wine and malt beverages containing alcohol of not more than 24 percent by volume in containers of any legal size from any permittee or licensee authorized to sell those beverages for resale; ~~and~~

(2) sell the wine and malt beverages for consumption on the licensed premises;

(3) allow an individual to:

(A) possess and consume on the licensed premises wine acquired by the individual off the licensed premises; and

(B) remove from the premises wine brought onto the premises by the individual under Paragraph (A); and

(4) charge a corkage fee for wine consumed on the premises under Subdivision (3).

SECTION _____. Sections 28.06(a) and (c), Alcoholic Beverage Code, are amended to read as follows:

(a) Except as provided by Sections 14.07, 28.01(c)(3), and 37.01(d), no holder of a mixed beverage permit, nor any officer, agent, or employee of a holder, may possess or permit to be possessed on the premises for which the permit is issued any alcoholic beverage which is not covered by an invoice from the supplier from whom the alcoholic beverage was purchased.

(c) Except as provided by Sections 14.07, 28.01(c)(3), and 37.01(d), no holder of a mixed beverage permit, nor any officer, agent, or employee of a holder, may knowingly possess or permit to be possessed on the licensed premises any alcoholic beverage which is not covered by an invoice from the supplier from whom the alcoholic beverage was purchased.

Amendment No. 1 was adopted.

Amendment No. 1 - Vote Reconsidered

Representative Lucio moved to reconsider the vote by which Amendment No. 1 was adopted.

The motion to reconsider prevailed.

Amendment No. 1 was withdrawn.

HB 1755 was passed to engrossment.

CSHB 1675 ON SECOND READING
(by Allison, Middleton, and Pacheco)

CSHB 1675, A bill to be entitled An Act relating to guardianships of the person of wards with profound intellectual disabilities who are minors or were minors when their guardianship proceedings commenced.

Amendment No. 1

Representative Allison offered the following amendment to **CSHB 1675**:

Amend **CSHB 1675** (house committee printing) as follows:

(1) On page 3, lines 20 and 21, strike "a hearing or".

(2) On page 3, lines 21 and 22, strike "appointment of an attorney ad litem under Section 1054.001 or".

(3) On page 4, lines 8 and 9, strike "conducting a hearing or appointing an attorney ad litem or court investigator" and substitute "appointing a court investigator or the continued appointment of an attorney ad litem".

(4) On page 7, between lines 21 and 22, insert the following:

(c) Notwithstanding Subsection (b), on receipt of a claim that the guardianship is no longer in the best interest of the ward, the court may review the matter and take any action the court determines necessary.

Amendment No. 1 was adopted.

A record vote was requested by Representative Canales.

CSHB 1675, as amended, was passed to engrossment by (Record 86): 111 Yeas, 34 Nays, 2 Present, not voting.

Yeas — Allison; Anderson; Ashby; Bailes; Bell, C.; Bell, K.; Bernal; Biedermann; Bonnen; Bucy; Burns; Burrows; Button; Cain; Capriglione; Cason; Clardy; Cole; Cook; Craddick; Cyrier; Darby; Dean; Dutton; Ellzey; Fierro; Frank; Frullo; Gates; Geren; Gervin-Hawkins; Goldman; González, J.; Goodwin; Guerra; Guillen; Harless; Harris; Hefner; Herrero; Holland; Howard; Huberty; Hull; Hunter; Israel; Jetton; Johnson, J.E.; Kacal; King, K.; King, P.; King, T.; Klick; Krause; Kuempel; Lambert; Landgraf; Larson; Leach; Leman; Lopez; Lozano; Martinez; Metcalf; Meyer; Middleton; Minjarez; Moody; Morrison; Muñoz; Murphy; Murr; Neave; Noble; Oliverson; Ordaz Perez; Ortega; Pacheco; Paddie; Parker; Patterson; Paul; Perez; Price; Raney; Raymond; Rogers; Romero; Rosenthal; Sanford; Schaefer; Schofield; Shaheen; Shine; Slaton; Slawson; Smith; Smithee; Spiller; Stucky; Swanson; Talarico; Thierry; Thompson, E.; Tinderholt; Toth; VanDeaver; Vasut; Vo; White; Wilson.

Nays — Allen; Anchia; Beckley; Bowers; Campos; Canales; Collier; Cortez; Crockett; Davis; Deshotel; Dominguez; González, M.; Hernandez; Hinojosa; Johnson, A.; Johnson, J.D.; Longoria; Lucio; Martinez Fischer; Meza; Morales, C.; Morales, E.; Ramos; Reynolds; Rodriguez; Rose; Sherman; Stephenson; Turner, C.; Turner, J.; Walle; Wu; Zwiener.

Present, not voting — Mr. Speaker(C); Coleman.

Absent, Excused — Buckley.

Absent — Morales Shaw; Thompson, S.

STATEMENT OF VOTE

When Record No. 86 was taken, I was shown voting yes. I intended to vote no.

J. González

**CSHB 699 ON SECOND READING
(by Rosenthal)**

CSHB 699, A bill to be entitled An Act relating to public school attendance and promotion requirements for students diagnosed with or undergoing related treatment for severe or life-threatening illnesses.

Amendment No. 1

Representative Rosenthal offered the following amendment to **CSHB 699**:

Amend **CSHB 699** (house committee printing) by adding the following appropriately numbered SECTION to the bill and renumbering subsequent SECTIONS of the bill accordingly:

SECTION _____. This Act may be cited as Riley's Rule.

Amendment No. 1 was adopted.

CSHB 699, as amended, was passed to engrossment.

**HB 2404 ON SECOND READING
(by Meyer)**

HB 2404, A bill to be entitled An Act relating to the creation and maintenance of a database of information regarding certain local economic development agreements; providing a civil penalty.

Amendment No. 1

Representative Slaton offered the following amendment to **HB 2404**:

Amend **HB 2404** (house committee report) in added Section 403.0246(c), Government Code, on page 2, between lines 21 and 22, by inserting the following appropriately numbered subdivision and renumbering subsequent subdivisions accordingly:

(____) whether the entity that entered into the agreement with the local government has publicly expressed opposition to a bill considered or enacted by the Texas legislature relating to the integrity and security of elections conducted in this state;

Amendment No. 1 - Point of Order

Representative Rodriguez raised a point of order against further consideration of Amendment No. 1 under Rule 11, Section 2, of the House Rules. The point of order was sustained and the speaker submitted the following ruling:

RULING BY THE SPEAKER

on Amendment No. 1 to House Bill 2404

Announced in the House on April 6, 2021

Representative Rodriguez raises a point of order against further consideration of the Slaton Amendment under Rule 11, Section 2, of the House Rules, on the grounds that the amendment is not germane.

The subject of the bill is the creation and maintenance by the comptroller of a database of information regarding certain local development agreements.

The bill requires a local government that enters into a local development agreement to provide the comptroller with a copy of the agreement, and the information contained in the agreement forms the basis of the information that is required to be included in the database. The Slaton Amendment would amend the bill's provisions to require the database to include certain information about an entity's activities that are unrelated to the terms of a local development agreement.

The subject of the amendment and the subject of the bill are not the same. The amendment is not germane. 86 H. Jour. 5217-5218 (2019).

Accordingly, the point of order is well-taken and sustained.

The ruling precluded further consideration of Amendment No. 1.

HB 2404 was passed to engrossment.

CSHB 1677 ON SECOND READING

(by **Holland, Burns, P. King, White, and Ellzey**)

CSHB 1677, A bill to be entitled An Act relating to the establishment of the Texas Police Service Animals Memorial Monument in the Capitol Complex.

CSHB 1677 was passed to engrossment.

FIVE-DAY POSTING RULE SUSPENDED

Representative Stucky moved to suspend the five-day posting rule to allow the Committee on County Affairs to consider **HB 3051**, **HB 3775**, and **HB 4564** at 10:30 a.m. or upon final adjournment or recess or bill referral, if permission granted, Thursday, April 8 in E2.014.

The motion prevailed.

COMMITTEES GRANTED PERMISSION TO MEET

Representative Anchia moved that the house grant permission for all committees and subcommittees to meet while the house is in session, until 10 a.m. tomorrow, pursuant to their committee postings or recess motions. For purposes of this motion, committees and subcommittees posted to meet today upon final adjournment or recess or during bill referral if permission is granted are authorized to convene upon adoption by the house of today's adjournment motion.

Permission to meet was granted.

**BILLS AND JOINT RESOLUTIONS ON FIRST READING
AND REFERRAL TO COMMITTEES
RESOLUTIONS REFERRED TO COMMITTEES**

Bills and joint resolutions were at this time laid before the house, read first time, and referred to committees. Resolutions were at this time laid before the house and referred to committees. (See the addendum to the daily journal, Referred to Committees, List No. 1.)

PROVIDING FOR ADJOURNMENT

At 3:50 p.m., Representative Harless moved that, at the conclusion of the reading of bills and resolutions on first reading and referral to committees and the receipt of messages from the senate, the house adjourn until 10 a.m. tomorrow in memory of Rita Huggler of Houston.

The motion prevailed.

HOUSE AT EASE

At 3:50 p.m., the chair announced that the house would stand at ease.

(Goldman in the chair)

The chair called the house to order at 4:03 p.m.

MESSAGE FROM THE SENATE

A message from the senate was received at this time (see the addendum to the daily journal, Messages from the Senate, Message No. 2).

**BILLS AND JOINT RESOLUTIONS ON FIRST READING
AND REFERRAL TO COMMITTEES**

Bills and joint resolutions were at this time laid before the house, read first time, and referred to committees. (See the addendum to the daily journal, Referred to Committees, List No. 2.)

ADJOURNMENT

In accordance with a previous motion, the house, at 4:04 p.m., adjourned until 10 a.m. tomorrow.

ADDENDUM

REFERRED TO COMMITTEES

The following bills and joint resolutions were today laid before the house, read first time, and referred to committees, and the following resolutions were today laid before the house and referred to committees. If indicated, the chair today corrected the referral of the following measures:

List No. 1

HCR 80 (By Craddick), Congratulating Frederic M. Newman on his induction into the Petroleum Hall of Fame.

To Resolutions Calendars.

HCR 81 (By Craddick), Congratulating Paul L. Morris on his induction into the Petroleum Hall of Fame.

To Resolutions Calendars.

HCR 82 (By Craddick), Honoring the memory of Frank M. Late on the occasion of his posthumous induction into the Petroleum Hall of Fame.

To Resolutions Calendars.

HR 520 (By Ellzey), In memory of Larry James York of Palmer.

To Resolutions Calendars.

HR 521 (By Ellzey), In memory of Jimmy Keith McCurdy of Waxahachie.

To Resolutions Calendars.

HR 522 (By Ellzey), In memory of Richard Charles Harris of Waxahachie.

To Resolutions Calendars.

HR 523 (By Ellzey), In memory of Debbie Jean Box of Waxahachie.

To Resolutions Calendars.

HR 524 (By Ellzey), In memory of Patrick Alan McKissick of Waxahachie.

To Resolutions Calendars.

HR 525 (By Ellzey), In memory of Mary Ann Mulkern Vignaux of Midlothian.

To Resolutions Calendars.

HR 526 (By Ellzey), In memory of Melvin Ray Kannady of Ferris.

To Resolutions Calendars.

HR 527 (By Schaefer), In memory of Sam L. Womack of Tyler.

To Resolutions Calendars.

HR 528 (By T. King), In memory of Juan Cornejo of Crystal City.

To Resolutions Calendars.

HR 529 (By Ramos), Congratulating Chief Jimmy L. Spivey on his retirement from the Richardson Police Department.

To Resolutions Calendars.

HR 530 (By Ramos), Recognizing Debbie Rentería on her election as the first Latinx member of the Richardson ISD Board of Trustees.

To Resolutions Calendars.

HR 531 (By Ramos), Congratulating Regina Harris on her election as the first Black female member of the Richardson Independent School District Board of Trustees.

To Resolutions Calendars.

HR 532 (By Ramos), Honoring the members of the Richardson ISD Council of PTAs.

To Resolutions Calendars.

HR 533 (By Fierro), Congratulating Dana Boyd on her election as the 2021-2022 member at-large for the Texas Elementary Principals and Supervisors Association Board of Directors.

To Resolutions Calendars.

HR 534 (By Fierro), In memory of Rosalva Arroyo Soria and Leobardo Soria of El Paso.

To Resolutions Calendars.

SB 8 to Public Health.

SB 9 to Public Health.

SB 12 to State Affairs.

SB 26 to State Affairs.

SB 45 to International Relations and Economic Development.

SB 196 to Licensing and Administrative Procedures.

SB 270 to Judiciary and Civil Jurisprudence.

SB 383 to Human Services.

SB 394 to Public Health.

SB 507 to State Affairs.

SB 516 to Criminal Jurisprudence.

SB 601 to Natural Resources.

SB 626 to Judiciary and Civil Jurisprudence.

SB 650 to State Affairs.

SB 672 to Human Services.

SB 705 to Agriculture and Livestock.

SB 802 to Public Health.

SB 827 to Insurance.

SB 863 to Human Services.

SB 872 to Environmental Regulation.

SB 873 to Ways and Means.

SB 941 to Transportation.

SB 1103 to Human Services.

SB 1137 to Public Health.

SB 1173 to Public Health.

SB 1647 to Public Health.

SJR 27 to State Affairs.

List No. 2

SB 1 to Appropriations.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The following messages from the senate were today received by the house:

Message No. 1

MESSAGE FROM THE SENATE

SENATE CHAMBER

Austin, Texas

Tuesday, April 6, 2021

The Honorable Speaker of the House

House Chamber

Austin, Texas

Mr. Speaker:

I am directed by the senate to inform the house that the senate has taken the following action:

THE SENATE HAS PASSED THE FOLLOWING MEASURES:

SB 7 Hughes

Relating to elections, including election integrity and security; creating criminal offenses; providing civil penalties.

Respectfully,

Patsy Spaw

Secretary of the Senate

Message No. 2

MESSAGE FROM THE SENATE

SENATE CHAMBER

Austin, Texas

Tuesday, April 6, 2021 - 2

The Honorable Speaker of the House

House Chamber

Austin, Texas

Mr. Speaker:

I am directed by the senate to inform the house that the senate has taken the following action:

THE SENATE HAS PASSED THE FOLLOWING MEASURES:

SB 1 Nelson

General Appropriations Bill.

SCR 39 Springer

In memory of Clyde Moody Siebman.

SCR 42 Hinojosa
 In memory of Moises Sanchez.
 Respectfully,
 Patsy Spaw
 Secretary of the Senate

APPENDIX

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS

Favorable reports have been filed by committees as follows:

April 1

Agriculture and Livestock - **HB 2089**

County Affairs - **HB 604, HB 1049, HB 1213, HB 1240, HB 1545, HB 2317, HB 2494, HB 2610**

Criminal Jurisprudence - **HB 225, HB 275, HB 295, HB 372, HB 375, HB 376, HB 402, HB 569, HB 744, HB 789, HB 842, HB 978, HB 1086, HB 1293, HB 1403**

Culture, Recreation and Tourism - **HB 1699, HB 1728, HB 2139, HB 2499, HB 3023**

Elections - **HB 574, HB 1264**

Homeland Security and Public Safety - **HB 1911**

Human Services - **HB 105, HB 149, HB 1387**

Judiciary and Civil Jurisprudence - **HB 79, HB 900, HB 903, HB 1337, HB 1578, HB 1593**

Juvenile Justice and Family Issues - **HB 2926, HB 2953**

Licensing and Administrative Procedures - **HB 2168**

Natural Resources - **HB 374, HB 1874, HB 1904, HB 1905, HB 2083**

Public Education - **HB 159**

Public Health - **HB 53, HB 1363, HB 2213**

State Affairs - **HB 5, HB 1715**

Ways and Means - **HB 2415**

ENGROSSED

April 1 - HB 7, HB 11, HB 33, HB 139, HB 365, HB 390, HB 567, HB 654, HB 725, HB 797, HB 1195, HB 1227, HB 1401, HB 1729, HB 2625

April 5 - HB 531